
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

TENNESSEE LOCAL DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

DECEMBER 14, 2023  

AGENDA 
 

 

1. Call meeting to order, establish that there is a physical quorum, and receive public comments 

on actionable items in accordance with 2023 Public Chapter 300 and Board guidelines. 

2. Approval of minutes from the TLDA meeting of November 29, 2023 

3. Requests from the City of Wartburg and the Plateau Utility District 

a) Consider for approval a request to transfer (through the issuance of a new SRF loan with 

the same terms) the City of Wartburg’s SRF loan to the Plateau Utility District 

b) Consider for approval a request from the District to assume the loan on parity with its 

Series 2012 Bonds and Series 2020 Bond and to update the security to the Combined 

System  

4. Report on the notification from the Town of Oakland submitted to comply with TLDA SRF 

Policy and Guidance for Borrowers        

5. Adjourn 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 TENNESSEE LOCAL DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

November 29, 2023 

 
The Tennessee Local Development Authority (the “TLDA”) met on Wednesday, November 29, 2023, at 3:03 p.m. 

in the Volunteer Conference Center, 2nd Floor, Cordell Hull Building, Nashville, Tennessee. The Honorable Tre 

Hargett, Secretary of State, was present and presided over the meeting. 
 

The following members were also present:  

  
The Honorable David H. Lillard, Jr., State Treasurer 

Commissioner Jim Bryson, Department of Finance and Administration 

Mayor Rollen “Buddy” Bradshaw, Senate Appointee 

 
The following member participated electronically as authorized by Tennessee Code Annotated § 8-44-108: 

 

Mayor Paige Brown, House Appointee 
 

The following members were absent: 

 
The Honorable Bill Lee, Governor 

The Honorable Jason E. Mumpower, Comptroller of the Treasury 

 

Recognizing a physical quorum present, Secretary Hargett called the meeting to order. Secretary Hargett, in 
accordance with Public Chapter 300 and Board guidelines, asked Ms. Sandi Thompson, TLDA Assistant Secretary 

and the Director of the Division of State Government Finance (“SGF”), if any requests for public comment had 

been received. Ms. Thompson responded that no requests for public comment had been received. Secretary Hargett 
asked Ms. Thompson to conduct a roll-call:  

 

Treasurer Lillard—Present 

Secretary Hargett—Present 
Commissioner Bryson—Present 

Mayor Bradshaw—Present 

Mayor Brown—Present 
 

Secretary Hargett stated that Comptroller Emeritus Justin P. Wilson was present in an advisory capacity.  

 
Secretary Hargett stated that the first item on the agenda was approval of the minutes from the October 9, 2023, 

TLDA meeting. He inquired if there were any questions or comments. Hearing none, Commissioner Bryson 

motioned to approve the minutes, and Treasurer Lillard seconded the motion. Secretary Hargett asked Ms. 

Thompson to conduct a roll-call vote.  
 

Treasurer Lillard—Aye 

Secretary Hargett—Aye 
Commissioner Bryson—Aye 

Mayor Bradshaw—Aye 

Mayor Brown—Aye 
 

The minutes were unanimously approved.  

 

Secretary Hargett stated that the next item on the agenda was the consideration of approval for an amendment to 
the financial advisor contract with PFM Financial Advisors, LLC. He stated that Ms. Thompson had explained the 

amendment in the previous State Funding Board and Tennessee State School Bond Authority meetings. Secretary 

Hargett stated that staff was satisfied with the financial advisor and recommended that the TLDA approve an 
amendment to extend the contract an additional year. He asked Ms. Thompson if that was correct, and she responded 



 

 

affirmatively. Secretary Hargett stated that the Chair would entertain a motion to approve the amendment. Treasurer 

Lillard moved to approve the amendment, and Commissioner Bryson seconded the motion. Secretary Hargett asked 

Ms. Thompson to conduct a roll-call vote: 
 

Treasurer Lillard—Aye 

Secretary Hargett—Aye 
Commissioner Bryson—Aye 

Mayor Bradshaw—Aye 

Mayor Brown—Aye 
 

The amendment was unanimously approved. 

 

Secretary Hargett stated that the next item on the agenda was the consideration and approval of Drinking Water 
State Revolving Fund (DWSRF) loans and said that, unless there were any objections, the TLDA would hear all the 

loan requests prior to asking for a motion to approve. Hearing none, he recognized Ms. Vena Jones, Program 

Manager, Tennessee Department of Environment and Conservation (“TDEC”) Division of Water Resources, to 
present the loan requests. Ms. Jones first presented the Report on Funds Available for Loan Obligation for the 

DWSRF Loan Program. She stated the unobligated fund balance was $98,273,313 as of August 21, 2023. Since 

that time, the unobligated had increased by $14,738 with the return of unused funding from the City of Huntingdon.  
Upon approval of the loan requests to be presented totaling $24,252,750, the remaining funds available for loan 

obligations would be $74,035,301. Secretary Hargett inquired if there were any questions about the fund balance, 

and Commissioner Bryson responded affirmatively. Commissioner Bryson asked Ms. Jones why Fayetteville had 

a high maximum annual debt service (MADS) percentage compared to other cities. Ms. Jones said the City’s MADS 
was shown as a percentage of its state-shared taxes (SSTs). However, she stated that during TDEC’s financial 

sufficiency review, SRF staff ensured that the City’s rates generated enough revenue to cover its debt service. 

instead of relying on its SSTs. which are pledged as an additional security. Commissioner Bryson asked if TDEC 
felt comfortable when looking at Fayetteville’s revenues directly, and Ms. Jones responded affirmatively. She 

elaborated that during its financial sufficiency review, TDEC factored in depreciation, revenues, costs, and expenses 

to determine that an applicant was financially sufficient to cover its debt service. Ms. Jones stated that TDEC was 

confident in the City’s ability to repay its SRF loan even though its MADS exceeded its SSTs. Commissioner 
Bryson thanked Ms. Jones for the information. Secretary Hargett then inquired if there were any further questions. 

Hearing none, he asked Ms. Jones to present the DWSRF loan requests. 

 

• Huntingdon (DG20 2024-262) Requesting $2,000,000 ($1,600,000 (80%) loan; $400,000 (20%) principal 
forgiveness) for a Green: Distribution system improvements; replacing existing waterlines on Main Street; 

extending waterlines to customers along Highway 77; and replacing existing water meters with automatic 

meter reading (AMR) meters; recommended interest rate of 1.54% based on the Ability to Pay Index 
(ATPI); Priority ranking 7 of 72 (FY2021); Term: 20 years  

 

• Fayetteville (DW8 2024-260) Requesting $800,000 ($550,000 (68.75%) loan; $250,000 (31.25%) 

principal forgiveness) for a water treatment plant (WTP) expansion: Expansion of the existing WTP from 

4.5 million gallons per day (MGD) to 8 MGD; This is a planning and design loan; recommended interest 
rate of 2.10% based on the ATPI; Priority ranking 82 of 143 (FY2022); Term: 5 years 

 

• Fayetteville (DWB22 2024-263) Requesting $15,200,000 ($7,700,000 (50.66%) loan; $7,500,000 

(49.34%) principal forgiveness) for a waterline replacement: Replacement of approximately 83,000 linear 
feet of aging waterlines to improve pressure and reduce water loss; Construction; recommended interest 

rate of 2.30% based on the ATPI; Priority ranking 56 of 143 (FY2022); Term: 20 years 

 

• Fayetteville (DWB22 2024-264) Requesting $1,800,000 ($540,000 (30%) loan; $1,260,000 (70%) 
principal forgiveness) for WTP improvements: Improvements to the solids management facilities and 

disinfection by product control; and the demolition of the existing WTP; Construction; recommended 

interest rate of 2.30% based on the ATPI; Priority ranking 83 of 143 (FY2022); Term: 20 years 



 

 

 

• Etowah (DW9 2024-261) Requesting $525,000 (275,000 (52.38%) loan; $250,000 (47.62%) principal 

forgiveness for WTP expansion and distribution system improvements: Expansion of the existing WTP 

from 4.2 MGD to 8 MGD and the construction of a new 3.2 MGD booster pump station to replace the 
existing West 5th Street pump station; This is a planning and design loan; recommended interest rate of 

1.78% based on the ATPI; Priority ranking 112 of 143 (FY2022); Term: 5 years 

 

• Cleveland Utilities Authority (DWF 2023-258) Requesting $3,927,750 for WTP improvements: 
Construction of a sodium hypochlorite feed system to replace the existing chlorine feed system at the 

Cleveland Filter Plant; recommended interest rate of 3.88% based on the ATPI; Priority ranking 63 of 143 

(FY2022); Term: 20 years 
 

Secretary Hargett inquired if there were any questions or comments. Hearing none, he motioned to approve the 

loans, and Treasurer Lillard seconded the motion. Secretary Hargett asked Ms. Thompson to conduct a roll-call 

vote: 
 

Treasurer Lillard—Aye 

Secretary Hargett—Aye 
Commissioner Bryson—Aye 

Mayor Bradshaw—Aye 

Mayor Brown—No response  
 

 

The loans were approved. 

 
Hearing no other business, Secretary Hargett moved to adjourn the meeting. Treasurer Lillard seconded the motion. 

Secretary Hargett asked Ms. Thompson to conduct a roll-call vote: 

 
Treasurer Lillard—Aye 

Secretary Hargett—Aye 

Commissioner Bryson—Aye 

Mayor Bradshaw—Aye 
Mayor Brown—No response 

 

 
The meeting was adjourned. 

 

 
 

Approved on this _____ day of __________, 2023. 

 

 
 Respectfully submitted, 

 

 
 Sandra Thompson 

 Assistant Secretary  



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

December 14, 2023 

 

Plateau Utility District/City of Wartburg 

Request to Transfer Loan and Modify Lien Position 

 

The Plateau Utility District (the “District”) and the City of Wartburg (the “City”) (collectively, the 

“Parties”) are requesting approval from the Tennessee Local Development Authority (the “TLDA”) to 

transfer the City’s State Revolving Fund (SRF) loan, SRF 2005-182, (the “SRF Loan”) from the City to 

the District. The SRF Loan is currently payable from the revenues of the City’s wastewater treatment 

and collection system (the “System”). Upon assumption of the SRF Loan, the District wants to update 

the pledged security to a combined water and wastewater system (the “Combined System”) revenue 

pledge of the District. In addition to the SRF Loan, the City will also assign its Series 2020 Revenue 

Bond (the “Series 2020 Bond”)1 to the District with an updated security of the Combined System. The 

District currently has outstanding Series 2012 Revenue Bonds2 and is requesting that the TLDA agree 

that the SRF Loan be assigned on parity with the Series 2020 Bond and the Series 2012 Bonds. The 

Parties stated in the request letter that they believe that the TLDA’s consent to these requests is in the 

public interest insofar as it will facilitate the transfer of the System from the City to the District, which 

the City has determined to be in the best interest of its citizens and that the TLDA’s consent will also 

preserve the District's ability, subject in any event to TLDA approval, to incur future debt on a shared 

lien basis, thereby minimizing interest costs payable by Combined System ratepayers. Approval for these 

requests is required by provisions set forth in the SRF loan agreement and guidelines set forth in the 

TLDA/SRF Policy and Guidance for Borrowers. 

  

1. The requestor is a: 

  X       Utility District (Plateau Utility District) 

Will the proposed debt be secured by revenues other than revenues of the water/wastewater 

system (e.g. electric, gas)?  ___ Yes      X      No 

 

_X_    Municipality (City of Wartburg) 

  

2. Lien Position: 

  X      The District is requesting that the TLDA agree that its lien on the revenues of the Combined 

System be on parity with the liens of the Series 2012 Bonds and Series 2020 Bond.  

 
1 The Series 2020 Bond debt obligation remaining at 6/30/23 is $756,028 comprised of $460,819 principal and $295,209 

interest.  
2 The Series 2012 Bonds are the District’s Rural Development USDA Revenue Bond, dated October 4, 2011, and its Series 

2012 Revenue Bonds, dated December 18, 2012, (collectively, the “Series 2012 Bonds”). The debt obligation remaining at 

6/30/23 is $4,007,625 comprised of $3,415,292 principal and $592,333 interest.  



Page 2 

The borrower is requesting to subordinate its outstanding SRF debt to the proposed debt 

issuance.   

The borrower is not requesting a modification of lien position and the proposed debt will 

be issued subordinate to the SRF debt.  

3. The purpose of the proposed debt issuance is: N/A

___   Refunding 

New Money 

4. Additional Information:

On April 8, 2019, the City was referred to the Tennessee Board of Utility Regulation (the “TBOUR”) 

(previously known as the Water and Wastewater Financing Board (the “WWFB”)), for financial 

distress. On May 10, 2021, the WWFB ordered the City to adopt recommendations of the Tennessee 

Association of Utility Districts which included increasing wastewater rates3. The WWFB also 

ordered the City to pursue merger or consolidation opportunities with the District. In accordance with 

this order, the City entered into an agreement with the District to transfer ownership4 of the City’s 

System to the District where the District will assign and assume any of the City’s remaining 

outstanding sewer obligations. To help facilitate the merger, the District requested grant funds from the 

Utility Revitalization Fund, and on October 26, 2023, the TBOUR approved grant funding in the 

aggregate amount of $500,000 to retire a portion of the System's debt obligations and to offset a 

portion of the District's operating expenses during the first five years of its ownership and operation 

of the System. The District has targeted January 1, 2024, as the first day of ownership of the System. 

The City is also currently under the jurisdiction of a Director’s Order and Assessment issued by the 

Tennessee Department of Environment and Conservation (TDEC), Division of Water Resources for 

violations of the Water Quality Control Act. The Parties entered into an Operations and Maintenance 

Agreement on June 30, 2021, where the District assumed operational control of the System while the 

City retained ownership of the system.  

5. The debt rating of the borrower is:

Please indicate N/R if not rated. 

   N/R     Moody’s 

   N/R     Standard and Poor’s 

   N/R     Fitch 

3 A copy of a contract amendment was provided with the request letter. 
4 A copy of the City’s resolution authorizing the transfer of assets and assumption of liabilities of the City's System to the 

District and a copy of the District’s resolution authorizing the transfer of assets and assumption of liabilities of the City 's 

System to the District were provided with the request letter. 



 

Page 3 

 

  

 

 

 

6. The following SRF loans are currently authorized/outstanding: 

 

 
 

 

7. Compliance with SRF Loan Agreement: 

 

a. Timely repayments [4.(a)]     

   X    Yes ____ No 

 

b. Security Deposit (UDs and Authorities) [8.]  

 

   X   Yes            No  

 

 

c. GAAP Accounting and Audited Annual Financial Statement Requirement [7.(g) and 

(m)(2)] 

The District has timely filed its audited financial statements with the Division of Local Government 

Audit through the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, within six months after fiscal year end. 

 

d. Sufficient Revenues [7.(k)] 

     X  Yes ____ No 

 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, the audited financial statements for the combined system 

(District and City) reflected an operating income (loss) of $(6,695), and a positive change in net 

position of $2,300,973. The statement of cash flows reflected debt service payments of $491,418, 

consisting of principal payments of $360,272 and interest payments of $131,272. 

 

At June 30, 2022, the combined system reported $6,145,732 in unrestricted cash and $730,173 

in restricted cash and investments. 

 

 

 

 

Borrower Wartburg

Date 11/1/2023

Loan Type Loan # Status Disbursements

Available 

to Draw

% Principal 

Forgiveness

Edison Balance

@Date MADS*

Sewer 2005-182 Repayment 1,155,869$                        -             -                276,574              65,196$          

65,196$          

*MADS is an estimate until final expenses have been determined

*The City pledges its unobligated state-shared taxes in an amount equal to MADS. Upon transfer, the District 

  will be required to fund a secruity deposit equal to MADS.



 

Page 4 

 

  

 

 

 

e. Debt Service Coverage Ratios [7.(l) and (m)(3) & (4)] 

 

The current and projected Debt Service Coverage Ratio meets or exceeds 1.2 times. 

    X   Yes    _    _ No 

 

If no, include a schedule of revised rates and fees.   ___ Included       X    N/A 

 

Most Recent Fiscal Year (m)(3): 

The combined system (District and City) debt service coverage ratio was 1.4x for fiscal year 

2021 and 2.2x for fiscal year 2022 (as provided by the District). The debt service coverage 

requirement for fiscal years 2021 and 2022 has been met. 

Next Three Fiscal Years After Debt Issuance (m)(4): 

The District projects that it will meet the debt service coverage requirement with estimated debt       

service to net revenue ratios of 2.4, 1.9, and 2.2 for fiscal years 2023, 2024, and 2025, 

respectively, for the combined system. 

 

f. Is the entity currently under the jurisdiction of the Tennessee Board of Utility Regulation 

(TBOUR)? 

[7.(n)] 

____ Yes   X      No (the District) 

 

**Note: The City had been under the oversight of TBOUR for financial distress, and is merging 

with the District. 

 

If yes, reason for referral:   ___ Water Loss ___ Financial Distress   ____ Administrative Review 

 

If the reason is financial distress, include a schedule of revised rates and fees along with a copy 

of the corrective action order from the respective board.   ___ Included      X    N/A 

 

 

8. Annual Budget Oversight  

 

Pursuant to state law, local governments are required to adopt a balanced annual budget and submit the 

budget to the Division of Local Government Finance (LGF) for approval. 

 

Is the local government in compliance? __X__ Yes ____ No 

 

If not in compliance, has LGF granted a waiver to allow the local government to issue this debt? 

___ Yes ____ No 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 5 

9. State-Shared Taxes (SST): (Towns, Cities, Counties):   N/A

$_________ Received in prior fiscal year 

$_________ Total Maximum Annual Debt Service (with SST pledge) 

$_________ Unobligated SSTs 

10. Conclusion

Based on our analysis, it appears the District meets the TLDA’s criteria to assume the City’s SRF Loan 

on parity with the Series 2012 Bonds and Series 2020 Bond with an updated security of the Combined 

System. Considering staff’s analysis and the orders of the TBOUR and the TDEC, staff recommends the 

approval of these requests. 

Attachments: 

• Assignment, Assumption, and Termination Agreement
• Request Letter

• City Resolution

• Department of Corrections Contract, as Amended

• District Resolution

• Debt Service Coverage and Financial Projections provided by the District

• Waiver of Opinion Letter



1

 
PLATEAU UTILITY DISTRICT 

ASSIGNMENT, ASSUMPTION, AND TERMINATION AGREEMENT 

This is an Assignment, Assumption, and Termination Agreement (this “Agreement”) by and among the 
City of Wartburg (the “City”), Plateau Utility District (“PUD”), the Department of Environment and 
Conservation (the “Department”), and the Tennessee Local Development Authority (the “Authority”). 

WHEREAS, the City borrowed funds from the wastewater facilities revolving loan fund created by the 
Tennessee Wastewater Facilities Act of 1987, as amended, which loan is evidenced by a loan 
agreement, SRF 2005-182, (the “Original Agreement”) in the original principal amount of $1,162,000 
entered into on or about March 31, 2005, by and among the City, the Department, and the Authority 
and the outstanding balance of which is referred to as the “Outstanding Indebtedness” (See Exhibit A, 
new loan agreement); and 

WHEREAS, the City , after completing the funded project’s construction, but prior to paying off the 
total Outstanding Indebtedness, has decided to transfer its wastewater treatment and distribution and 
collection facilities to PUD, a public utility district created pursuant to the Utility District Law of 1937, 
Tenn. Code Ann. §§ 7-82-101 to -113, subject to satisfaction of conditions precedent to closing; and 

WHEREAS, PUD assumes the Outstanding Indebtedness, and the Department and the Authority are 
willing to agree to such assumption on the conditions that the Original Agreement be terminated and 
that PUD enter into a new loan agreement (the “New Loan Agreement”) with the Department and the 
Authority to replace the Original Agreement; 

THEREFORE, in consideration of the previous, the parties agree as follows: 

1. The City hereby assigns all of its rights, title, and interest in the Outstanding Indebtedness to PUD. 

2. PUD hereby assumes the Outstanding Indebtedness of the City and, as a condition thereof, PUD 
agrees that it will enter into the New Loan Agreement and that the terms and conditions of the 
New Loan Agreement shall be the same as those contained in the draft loan agreement attached 
as Exhibit A. 

3. PUD agrees to be subject to the jurisdiction of the Tennessee Board of Utility Regulation created 
pursuant to Tennessee Code Annotated Title 7, Chapter 82. 

4. The Department and the Authority hereby release the City from liability for the Outstanding 
Indebtedness and terminate the Original Agreement. 

5. This Agreement shall not be effective until such time as each of the following events shall have 
occurred: 



2

i. This Agreement has been executed by all parties hereto.

ii. PUD has furnished evidence satisfactory to the Department and to the Authority that 
the City's wastewater system has been transferred to PUD. 

iii. PUD has complied with all terms and conditions of the New Loan Agreement and the 
New Loan Agreement has been executed by all parties thereto. 

6. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be treated as 
an original. 

 

    [Signature page follows] 
  

































































 

 
Division of Water Resources| State Revolving Fund Loan Program | William R. Snodgrass | TN Tower | 12th Floor |  
312 Rosa L. Parks Ave. | Nashville, TN  37243 | T (615) 532-0488 |  F (615) 532-0199 | tn.gov/environment | tnstateparks.com 

 
December 1, 2023 
 
 
Tennessee Local Development Authority 
Cordell Hull Building 
425 Fifth Avenue North  
Nashville, TN 37243-3400 
ATTN:  Assistant Secretary 
 
RE: Waiver of Opinion Letter 

Plateau Utility District   
SRF 2005-182  

 
Dear Sir/Madam: 
 
The State Revolving Fund Loan Program has performed a financial sufficiency review analysis for the 
aforementioned entity and the outstanding loans listed above.  The SRF program has determined that 
the Plateau Utility District has a sufficient rate structure to assume these loans. 
 
Therefore, based on the financial sufficiency review by TDEC, the requirement for a separate opinion 
regarding sufficiency of rates, fees, and charges associated with the assumption and transfer of all 
outstanding loans has been waived. 
 
The SRF Loan Program reserves the right to conduct new or additional financial evaluations at any 
time if, in the opinion of the SRF program, circumstances warrant such re-evaluation. 
 
If you have any comments or questions, please feel free to contact me via email at 
vena.l.jones@tn.gov or via phone at (615) 898-9499. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

Vena Jones 
 
Vena L. Jones, Manager 
SRF Loan Program 
 

mailto:vena.l.jones@tn.gov






 

 

 

November 29, 2023 

 
 
Harvey Ellis 

Town Manager 

170 Doss Circle 

PO Box 56 

Oakland, TN 38060 

 

 

Mr. Ellis: 

 

This letter acknowledges that the Town of Oakland has provided written notice to the Tennessee 

Local Development Authority (the “TLDA”) of its intent to enter into a loan agreement with the 

Public Building Authority (PBA) of the City of Clarksville and the purchaser of the PBA’s bond, 

in an amount not to exceed $7,000,000, to finance a portion of the costs of water and sewer system 

improvements, including the rehabilitation and expansion of the City’s wastewater treatment plant 

and that the loan will be issued subordinate to its State Revolving Fund (SRF) loans.  This loan is 

being made in addition to the Town’s $18,000,000 PBA water and sewer loan, dated August 2023. 

In addition, this letter also acknowledges a waiver of the 45-day requirement for written 

notification pursuant to the TLDA SRF Policy and Guidance for Borrowers.   

 

Please let us know if you need any additional information in this regard. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

Sandra Thompson 

Director 

Assistant Secretary to the Tennessee Local Development Authority 

Division of State Government Finance 

Office of the Comptroller of the Treasury 

 




